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’STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND
DISPOSITION AND ORDER APPROVING

ACTUAL SUSPENSION

PREVIOUS STIPULATION REJECTED

Nole: All informalion required by this form and any oddilional information which cannot be provided
in lhe space provided, must be set forth in an atlachmenf to this stipulation under specific headings,
e.g,. "Fools." "Dismissals." "Conclusions of Law." "Supporting Authority." etc,

A. Parties’ Acknowledgments:

[1) Respondent is a membe~ of the State Bar of Colilornia. admllted Nave mbe r 25.1997
(O~te)

(2) The padies agree fo be bound by the fOclual slipulotions contained herein even if Conclusions of law or
disposition ore rejected or changed by the Supreme Coud.

[3] All investigations or proceedings listed by case number in the caplion of this slJpulotion, ore enlirely resolved
by Ibis slipulation and are deemed consolidated. Dismissed chorge(s)Icounl[s} are listed uncSer "Dismissals."
The slipulation and order consisl at ._3 i’_ pages.

(4} A statement of acts at omissions acknowledged by Respondent as cause or causes for discipline is included
under "Facts."

15] Conclusions of low, d~awn from and specifically referring to the facts ore also included under "Conclusions of
Low."

|b] The parties must include suppoffing aulhodty for the recommended level of discipline under lhe heading
"Supporling Authorily)’

( 7J No more thon 30 days prior to the filing of this stipulation, Respondent has been odvis.ed in wriling of any
pending investigation/proceeding nol ~esolved by Ibis slipulation, except for criminal investigations.
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Payment of Disciplinary Costs--Respondent acknowledges the provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code §§608610 &
6140.7. |Check one option only):

until costs ore paid in rut1, Respondent will remain actually suspended from the practice at law unless
relief is obtainea per rule 284, Rules of Procedure.
costs to be paid In equal amounts prior Io February I for the following membership years:

(r~orasr~ilo, spe~:~ol c~rcumsl’once~ or or/let gooo cause per rule Z~-4, Nules or P’roceaure]
costs waived in pad as sel forth in o separate olfachmenf entitled "Podial Waiver of Costs"
costs entirely waived

B. Aggravating Circumstances [for definition, see Standarcls for Attorney Sanctions
for Protesslonol Misconduct, standard Io2(b]]. Facts supporting aggravating
circumstances are required.

(I) I~ Pdor ~ecord of dlsclpilne [see standard 1.21~]

State Bar Court case # of p~ior case

Dote prior discipline efteclive August 17, 2003

Rules of Professional Conducl/Stole Bar Act violations: Rule 4-! 00 (.A), ~ules of F’rgfessionaZ

Conduct; Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.

Degree of prior discipline 30-Day Actual Suspe~.siqr~, One "~ea%
Stayed Suspension, One Year Probation.

If Respondent has two or more incidents of prior discipline, use space provided below or a
separate attachmen| entitled "P~io! Discipline."

Dl$honeshf: Respondent’s misconduct was surrounded by or followed by" bad faith, dishonesty,
concealment, overreaching or other violations of the Slate Bar Act or Rules of Professional Conduct.

Trust V1olaffor1: Trust funds or property were involved and Respondent refused or was unable to
account fo/he client or person who was lhe object at the misconduct for improper conduct toward
said funds or property.

Harm: Respondent’s misconduct harmed significantly o client, the public or the administration of justice.
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(5) E] Indifference: Respondent demons/rated indifference toward rectification of or atonement for the
consequences at hls or her misconduct.

Lock of Coopetatlon: Respondent displayed a lack of candor and cooperation to victims of hls/her
misconduct or to the State Bar during disciplino~, investigation or proceedings.

(7] [] Multlple/Paflem of Mllconduct: ,Respondents current misconduct evidences multiple acts of
wrongdo/ng or demonstrates a pattern of m|sconduct.

See Al:l:ach=en~" al: p. 28

iS) [-1 NO aggravating circumstances ore involved,

Addlflonol oggrovotlng clrcurnstances:

R=spondenl’s misconduct in lh= present matter is sirni/ar to his prior misconduct in case number

02-0-10358 in that he attributed his prior misconduct to his failure to supervise his employee’s handliz

ofhis trust account. (Levin v. State Bar (1989) 47 Cal.3d 1140, 1149-1150.)

C.Mitigating Circumstances [see stOndard 1.2[e)]. Facts supporting mitlgating
circumstances are required.

[11 O No Prior Disc!pllne: Respondent has no prior record or discipline over many years of practice
coupled with present misconduct which is not deemed serious,

[] No Harm: Respondent did hal harm the clienl or person who was lhe object of the misconduct.

[] Condor/Cooperation: Respondent displayed soonlaneaus candor and cooperalian with the
viclims of his/her misconduct and to the State Bar during disciplinary investigation and proceedings.

(4] [] Remorse: Respondent promptly took obiective steps spontaneously demonstrating remorse and
recognition of the wrongdoing, which steps were designed ta timely ,atone for an’-/consequences
his/her misconduct.

Restltuflon: Respondent p~id $
in restitution to
civil or cdminai proceedings.

without the threat or ta~ae of disciplinary,

Delay: These disciplinary proceedings were excessively delayed. The delay is not attributable to
Respondent and the delay preiudiced him/her.

[] Good Faith: Respondent acted in good tofth.

Emotlonal/Physlcal Difficulties: At the time of the stipulated act or acts of professional misconduct

Respondent suffered extreme emotional difficulties or physical disabilities which expert testimony
would establish was directly responsible for the misconduct. The difficulties or disabilities were not the
p~oducl of any illegal conduct by the member, such as illegal drug or substance abuse, and Respondent

no longer suffers from such difficulties or disabilities.

(9] (~ Severe Flnancia{ Stress: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered from severe financial
stress which resulted from circumstances not reasonably foreseeable or which were beyond his/her
control ar~cl which were directly responsible for the misconduct.
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Fatally Problems: At the time of the misconduct, Respondent suffered ext’reme difficulties ~n his/he~
personal life which were other than emotional or physical in nature.

Good Characler: Respondent’s good character is aflesfed to by a wide range of references Jn the

legal and general communities who are aware at the tult extent of his/her misconduct.

Rehabllltatton: Conslderable time has passed since the acts of professional misconduct OCcurred
fallowed by convincing proof of subsequent rehabilitation.

Addlllonal mlltgaflng clrcumsfances:

See at~’achment: t:o St:J.pu].at~.on at: p,

No mlt}gottng clrcumslances ore involved.

29.

D. Discipline:

(I) ~ Stayed SuspenMon:

{2)

Respondent must be suspended from lhe proclice of low for o period of three years.

and until Respondent shows proof satisfactory to the State Bar Court of rehabilitation and present
fitness fo practice and present learning and ability in the low pursuant fo standard
Standards for Afforney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct.

and until Respondent pays restitution as set forth in the Financial Canal)hans farm attached to this
sfipulolion.

and unlil Respondent does the following:

(b) [] Theabove-referenced suspension is stayed.

ff] Probation:

Respondent must be placed on probation for a period of
which will commence upon the effective date of lhe Supreme Court archer in Ibis matter.
(See rule 953, Calif. Rules of Cl,)
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[3] E] Actual Suspension:

(a} [] Respondent must be actual~y suspended from the practice of law in the State of California for a
period of ~o ~’ears

and until Respondent shows prop)’ satisfaci,oq,’ to the State Bar Court’ of rehobifftalion and
presenl fitness to practice and present teaming and ability in the law pursuant to standard
! .4(CJ(ii), Standards for Attorney Sanctions for Professional Misconduct

li. [] and unfit Respondenl pays restitution as set forth in lhe Financial Conditions form attached to
this stipulation,

iii. E] and until Respondent does the following:

E. Additional Conditions of Probation:

If Respondenl is actually suspended los two years or more, he,’she must remain ocfual{y suspended until
he/she proves i,o i,he State Bar Couff his/her rehabilitation, fitness to practice, and learning and ability in
general low, pursuant to standard | .4(c)(ii), Standards for Aflomey Sanctions for Professional Misconduct.

Dudng the probation period, Respondenl must comply with lhe provisions of the State Bar Acl and
Rules of Professional Conduct.

Within ten (~ 01 days of any change, Respondenl must report fo the Membership Records Office of the
Stale Bar and to the Office of Probation of the State Bar of California ("Office o( Probation"I. all changes
of information, including Currenl office address and telephone number, or other address for Stale Bar
purposes, as prescribed by section 6002.1 of the Business and Professions Code.

W~thin thirty (301 days from the effective date of discipl(ne, Respondent must contact the Otfice of
Probation and schedule a meeting with Respondent’s assigned probation deputy lo discuss these terms
and conditions of probation. Upon the direction of the Office of Probation, Respondent must meet wilh
the probation deputy either in-person or by telephone. During lhe period of probation, Respondent must
promptly meet with lhe probation deputy as directed and upon requesl.

Respondent must submit written quarterly reports to the Office of Probalion on each January I O, April I0,
July ] O, and October I 0 of the period of probation. Under penalty of periury, Respanclent must state
whether Respondent has compffed with the State Bar Act, the Rules of Professional Conduct, and
conditions of probation during the preceding calendar quarter. Respondent must also state whether there
are any proceedings pending against him or her in the State Bar Court and if so, the case number and
current status of thai’ proceeding, ff 1’he tirsl report would cover less than 30 days, that report must be
submitted on the next quarter dote, and cover the extended pei’iod.

~n odditic~n fo oll quoderly ~’epods, o tinol repofl, containing the same informction, is due no earlier than
twenty (20) days berate the lost day of the period of p~c, botion and no later than the lost, day of
probation.

Respondent must be assigned a probation monilor. Respondent must promptly review the terms and
conditions of probation with the probation monilot to establish a manner and schedule of compliance.
During the period of probation, Respondent must furnish to the monilor such reports as may De requesled,
in addition to lhe quarterly reports required to be submitted to the Office of Probation, Respondent must
cooperate fully with the probation monitor,

[7] [] Subject fo assertion of applicable privileges. Respondent must answer fully, promptly and truthfully any
inquiries of the Office of Probation and any probation monitor assigned under these conditioos which ore
direcled to Respondent personally or in w[iting relating to whether Respondent is complying or has
complied with the probation conditions.
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[8) ~ W~thin one (I) year Oi the effective date of the discipline herein, Respondent must provide to lhe O~=’~e

of Probation satisfactory prool at attendance at a session of the Ethics School, and passage of the te~f
given at the end of that session,

~ No Ethics Schoot recommended. Reason:. Respond.ant. completed Eth’;cs School on
February ~, 2004 in connection with case number 02-O-I0358.’

Respondent must comply with a~I condltions of probation imposed ~n the underlying crlmlnal molter and
must so declare under penalty of periunf in conjunction with any quarterly report to be flied with the
Office of Probation.

~101 ~ The to/lowing conditions are aft’ached hereto and incorporaled:

Substance Abuse Conditions

Medical Conditions

Law Office Management Conditions

Financial CondJlions

F. Other Conditions Negotlated by the Parties:

[I} [] Multlsfate Professional Responsibility Examlnafton: Respondent nnusf provide proof of

passage of the Muttistole Professional Responsibility l:xaminotion ("MPRE"), administered by the
National Conference of Bar Examiners, to the Office of Probalion during the period of actual
suspension or wilhin one year, whichever period is longer, Failure to pass the MPRE
results in actual suspension w~thout further hearing untff passage. But see rule
Cafftomla Rules of Court. and rule 3211a)11) & (c), Rules of Procedure.

[2]

~ NoMPRErecommended. Reason: Respondent passed the MPRE on November 7, 2003
in connection with case number 02-O-I0358.(See Authorities Supporting

Ru e 9‘5 , Catlfo,nlo Rules ofRespondent m st
955, California Rules of CouP, and pe~o~m lhe acts specifi~ in subdivisions (o} and {c} o~ lhal ~ule
within 30 and 40 ca(endar days, ~espectively, afte~ the effective date of the Supreme Court’s Oraer
{n this mallet.

[3} £~ Condlllonof Rule 9.55, Caflfomla Rules of Court: It Respondenl remains actually suspended for
90 days or more, he/she must comply wilh the requirements of rule 955, California Ru~es of Court,
perform the acts specified in subdivisions {at and (c] of that ~te wffhin 120 and 130 calendar days,
respectively, after the efJective dote at the Supreme Court’s Otde~ in this matter.

[4} [] Credit for Interim Suspension [conviction referral cases only]: Respondent will be credited
for the period of his/her interim suspension toward the stipulated period of actual suspension. Oate

at commencement o! JntelJm suspension:

(5) ~ Other Conditions: Respondent shall maintain complete records of the notification
and the certified or registered mailisgs sent pursuant to rule 955, California Rules
of Court, and shall provide such records upon the request of the Office of The Chief
Trial Counsel.

WAIVER OF ISSU~XqCE OF NOTICe OF DISCIPLINARY CHARGES

It is agreed by the par~ies that the investigative matter designated as case number
05-0-00014 shall be incorporated in this stipulated disposition. The parties waive
the issuance of a Notice of Disciplinary Charges and the right to a formal hearing
and any other procedures necessary with respect to this investigative matter in order
to accomplish the objectives of this agreement.
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l
ln the I’~tatter at

DANIEL EDOU~RD C~IEN I
C~se Number(s}:

02-O- [0638-RAP

Law Office t’,~.anagement Conditions

¥1!th~n __ dcys,’ ~mcnths/ 2 years ot~ ~he effective dale of the discipline herein,
,R~s~crdet’t m,.s; devetc~ ~ ;aw =trice management/organization plan, which mu~ ~
aDO~’,’ed ~y the Office ~f P:cbction. This p~an must include p~ocedures to [1] send ~riodic
reacts t¢ cJie¢ts; [2~ ~ocumem :elec~one mes~ges received and sent; (3J maintain tiles;

meet ~ec~l~es; (5] ~ffhdr~w cs ~flcmey. whether o~ record Or hal, when clients cannot

c~rr~c’,e,~ ~r ’cc~tea; ~6] f;=in =~d ;~per/i~e suppod personnel; and (7) ~ddfess any subj~l
c;ec ~ ~e~c~ecc’/~hcf caused 3r contributed to Respcndent’s misconduct in the current

prcceedi~

Wilhin __ days/     mcr, lhs __years o| the elfective date of the discipline herein,
Res~cr’c~er; ink.st submit to the Office of ?rcbcticn satisfacton/evidence of completion of no
less than __ hours of Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) approved courses in law

c~fice management, a~c(ne / c;ie~f relations and/o~ general legal ethics. This requi{ement is
separate from cPV MCLE r~q,.i~emenl, and Res~ondenf will not receive MCLE credit for
ctte~c;~g ~h~se c~urses [Rule 320!, ~ule~ of Proc~re at the Stale BOr.]

Within 30 .~c, ys ct ;he effective dcte o*’ the discipline, Respondent must join the Low Praclice

Mcncgement ,~nd T~chnolog,! Section of the State Bar of CaJitornJo and pay lhe due~ and
costs of ec, r~{~ment {or ~ ?eor~s~. Respondent must furnish sot~foctory evidence of
membership :n the ~ect~on ~o the Office of P~cbation of the Stale Ba~ of California in the

first report required

Within two years of the effective date of discipline herein, Respondent
must submit to the Office of Probation satisfactory evidence of completion
of no less than four hours ef Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE)
approved courses in law office management, attorney-client relations,
and/or general legal ethics, and no less than two hours of any other MCLE
approved courses. This requirement is separate from any MCLE requirement,
and Respondent will not receive MCLE credit for attending these courses
(rule 320[, Rules of Procedure of the State Bar).

poge#
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I
~n the Matter at Case Number[s):

Daniel Edouard Chien 02-O-10638-RAP

Financial Conditions

a. Restitution

[] Respondent must pay restitution (including lhe principal amount, plus interest of 10% per annum)
to the payee(s] listed below. It the Client Security Fund ("CSF"J has reimbursed one or more of the
payee(s) for all or any portion of lhe principal amount(s) listed below, Respondent must also pay
restitution to CSF of the amount(s) paid, plus applicable interest and costs.

Payee Princlpai Amount Interest Accrues From

Glor~a Lope~ $3,5~5.67 Effective date of SuDr~r~

Esther Riz9 $4,777.24 ~fective date of Sunreme

Humberto...Hernandez Cruz $~,049.00 ’;f fective da~e of Suor~m*e

Court’s Order

Court’ s Order

burr’s ~:der

Respondent must ~6t~1/J~/~El~’~r~/~j~l~’~i~i~bt~,/:~/~ provide satisfactory proof of payment
to the Office of Probation not later than 30 days after the re~t~:~ut~an i~ mede.

installment Restitution Payments

Respondent must pay the above-referenced restitution on the payment schedule sel forlh below.
Respondent must provide satisfactory proof of payment to Ihe Office at Probalion w{th each
duoderly probation raped, or as otherwise directed by Ihe Office of Probation. No toter than 30
days prior to the expitalion of the period of probation (or period of reproval), Respondent must
make any necessary final paymenl(sJ in order to complete lhe paymenl of restitution, including
interest, in

Payee/CSF (as opplicabie) Minimum Payment Amount Payment Frequency

c. Client Funds Certificate

It Respondent possesses client funds at any lime during lhe period covered by a required
quarterly report, Respondent must file with each required report a cedificate from
Respondent and/or a certified public accountant or other financial professional approved
by the Office of Probation, ce~itying that:

a. Respondent has mainlained a bank account in a bank authorized to do business in
lhe State of California, at a branch located within the State of California, and that
such account is designated as a "Trust Account" or "Clients’ Funds Account";

(Financlol Conditions form approved by $8C Execulive Committee 113/I 6/2000 Revised 12/I 6/2004 )
_8_ _
page#
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lhe Morte[ ot

DANIEL EDOUARD CHIEN
Case Number(s):

02-O-I0638-F~4P

b. Respondent has kept and maintained the following:
i. a written ledger for each clienl on whose behalf funds ore held that sets fodh:

I. the name of such clienl;
2. lhe date, omounl and source of all funds received on l~ehalf of such client;
3. lhe date, amount, payee and purpose of each disbursement mode on behalf of

such client; and.
4. the current ~lonce (~ s~ch client

iL a wriHen journal for each client t~ust fund occoun~ that sets fodh:
1, the name o~ such account;
2. the date, amount and client affected by each debit and credff; and.
3. the cu~ent balance in such occounl.

i~i. oflbankslafementsandcancelledchecksfo~eachclienthustaccount;and,
iv. each m~thly reconciliation (balancing) of [~), [~), and (~i], a~ve, on~ if the~e ore

any differences be~een the monthly fatal balances reflected in [i], (ii]. and (iiiL
~ve, the reasons for ~he d~ff~ences.

c. Respondent has maintained o written iournal of securities or other properties held for
clients that specifies:
i, each item of secudly and property held:
ii. the person on Whose behalf the securily or property is held;
iii the dote at receipt of the secud~" or pcapedv;
iv. the date of distribution of the securily or prope~; and.
v. ~he person to whom the secud~ or p¢ope~ was d~shibuted.

2. If Respondenl does not possess any client funds, property or securities during the entire period
covered by a report. Respondenl must so state under penally at perjury in the repod tiled with
the Office of Probation for that repoding period. In this circumstance. Respondent need
not tile lhe accountant’s certificate described obove.

3. The requirements of this condition are in addilion to Ihose set todh in rule 4.100, Rules of
P~ofessional Conduct,

d. Client Trust Accounting School

Within one {1) year of the effective dote at the discipline herein, Respondenl must supply 1o the
Office of Probation satisfactory proof of otlendonce at a session of lhe Ethics School Client 1rust
Accounting School, within the same period of time, and passage of the test given at the end of lhot
session.

~X No Client Trust Accounting School is recommended as ~espondent Completed
Client Trust Accounting School on February |7, 2004 in connection with
Case number 02-0-I0358.

{Financial Conditions form approved by SBC Executive Committee 10/16/2000, Revised 12116//2004 )
9
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In the Matter of

DANIEL EDOUARD CHIEN

CaseNumber[s):

82-O-10638-RAP

NOLO CONTENDERE PLEA TO STIPULATION AS TO FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND DISPOSITION

Bus. & Prof. Code § 6085.5 Disciplinary Charges; Pleas to Allegations

There are three kinds of pleas to the allegations of a notice of disciplinary charges or olher pleading which
initiates a disciplinary proceeding against a member:

(a) Admission of culpability.

(b) Denial of culpability.

Nolo contendere, subject to the approval of the State Bar Court. The court shall ascertain
whelher the member completely understands that a plea of nolo contendere shall be
considered lhe same as an admlsslon of culpability and that, upon a plea of nolo
contendere, the court shall find the member culpable. The legal effect of such a plea
shall be the same as that of an admission of culpablllty for all purposes, except that the
plea and any admissions required by the court during any inquiry It makes as to the
voluntariness of, or the factual basis for, the pleas, may not be used against the member
as an admlsslon in any civil suit based upon or growing oul of lhe act upon which the
dlsc~pllna~, proceeding Is based. [Added bv Stals. 1996, ch. 1 I04.) (emphasis supplied)

RULE 133, Rules of P~ocedure of the Stale Bar of California STIPULATIONS AS TO FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND DISPOSITION

(a] A proposed stipulation as to facts, conclusions of law, and disposition must set forth each of the following:

(5] a statement that Respondent either

(i] admits lhe facts sel forth in the stipulalion are true and that he or she is culpable of violations of the
specified statutes and/or Rules of Prolessional Conduct or

(ill pleads nolo contendere to those facts and violations. If lhe Respondent
pleads nolo confendere, the stlpulatlon shall Include each of the followlng:

(a] an acknowledgment thal the Respondent completely understands that the plea
of nolo contendere shall be consldered the same as an admlsslon of the
stipulated facts and of his or her culpabllity of the statutes and/or Rules of
Professlonal Conduct specified In the stipulation; and

[bl If requested by the Court. a statement by the Deputy Trial Counsel that the
faclual stipulations are supported by evidence obtained in the State Bar
Investigation of the tootler. [emphasis supplledI

l, the Respondent in this matter, have read the applicable provisions of Bus. & Prof. Code
§ 6085.5 and rule 1 33(a][5] of the Rules of Procedure of the State Bar of California, I plead nolo
contendere to the charges set forth in this stipulation and I completely undersland that my plea
must be considered the same qs an admission of ~bili_~ except as stated in Business and
Professions Code section 608,~/~(c]. - ,.’/

(Nolo Conlendere Plea form approved by SBC Executive Commi,ee t 0/22/I 997. Revised 12/I 6/2004.)

page#
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ATTACHMENT TO

STIPULATION RE FACTS~ CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION

IN THE MATTER OF: DANIEL E. CHIEN

CASE NUMBER(S): 02-0-10638, ET AL.

FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW.

The parties enter into this agreement solely for the purpose of resolving this proceeding.
Respondent admits that the following facts are true and that he is culpable of violations of the
specified statutes and/or Rules of Professional Conduct.

Introductory Facts

1. On December 8, 1999, Respondent filed articles of incorporation for Thunderdome, A Law
Corporation ("TLC"), for the purpose of engaging in the profession of law. Respondent was
listed as TLC’s chief executive officer, secretary and chief financial officer. A non-attorney,
Luis Salas ("Salas"), was listed as the agent for service of process for TLC. TLC’s address was
listed as 2640 E. South Garvey Avenue, Suite 202, West Covina, California 91791 ("the West
Covina office"). The West Covina office was opened as Respondent’s satellite office, but
Respondent spent most of his time at his primary office. Respondent was not often present at the
West Covina office because he understood that the amount of work generated from that office
was not sufficient to warrant his being there more often. Respondent maintains that Salas
opened an office for TLC at 3516 Ninth St., Suite D, Riverside, CA 92501 ("the Riverside
office") without Respondent’s authority or knowledge.

2. Prior to incorporating TLC, Salas had worked at the same address as the West Covina office
with attorney Humberto Samuel Hernandez ("Hernandez"), until his employment relationship
with Hernandez was terminated around December 1999. On December 7, 1999, Salas had
renewed the lease agreement on behalf of Hernandez’s firm for the West Covina office.
Previously, on December 30, 1998, Salas had entered into a lease agreement on behalf of
Hernandez’s firm for the West Covina office.

3. On December 22, 1999, Respondent opened a general account at Bank of America, account
number 09802-01770 ("TLC’s general account"). Respondent and Salas were signatories for the
general account.

4. Unknown to Respondent, Salas prepared bankruptcy petitions falsely purporting that they
were prepared in connection with TLC and listing Respondent as the attorney of record. Salas
was paid on a case-by-case basis for his services for those cases of which Respondent was aware
and which he authorized. Salas also arranged for other attorneys to make appearances in the
bankruptcy cases that he filed falsely listing Respondent as the attorney of record.

3_0



5. Unknown to Respondent, in 2000, Salas mailed solicitations falsely purporting to be under
the TLC name for bankruptcy services to persons whose homes were in foreclosure proceedings
("the solicitation").

6. Unknown to Respondent, on January 22, February 4, March 20, April 18, May 12, July 25,
and October 2, 2000, Salas made rent payments from TLC’s general account for the West
Covina office.

7. In or about October 2000, Respondent terminated his business relationship with Salas, but did
not dissolve TLC or close TLC’s general account.

The Gloria Lopez Bankruptcy - Case No. 02-0-10638

Facts

8. Paragraphs 1 through 7 are incorporated by reference.

9. In June 2000, Salas falsely led Gloria Lopez ("Lopez") to believe that she had hired TLC for
a bankruptcy after she received the solicitation from Salas. Salas, without Respondent’s
knowledge or authorization, directed Edith Lopez, a non-attorney, to Lopez’s home falsely
purporting to be a representative of TLC. Edith Lopez told Lopez that Respondent was the
attorney that could help her save her home. In June 2000, Lopez met with Salas at the West
Covina office. Salas falsely told Lopez that Respondent was the attorney who would be in
chargeofthe bankruptcy, but that Salas would be handling the bankruptcy. Lopez paid Salas
approximately $450 as a partial payment of what Salas falsely represented to be Respondent’s
$1,200 fee.

10. On June 27, 2000, and without Respondent’s knowledge and/or authorization, Salas filed a
Chapter 13 bankruptcy petition for Lopez in the United States Bankruptcy Court, case number
00-19702. The petition listed Respondent as the attorney of record.

11. On June 30, 2000, the court ordered Respondent to collect from Lopez and forward the
current monthly payments on any debt secured by Lopez’s residence to the secured lienholder.
The court also ordered that plan payments be sent directly to the trustee. Because Salas
concealed the order from Respondent, he was not aware of it.

12. On July 7, 2000, Salas received $1,160.37 from Lopez for her post-petition mortgage
payment to Wells Fargo Home Mortgage, Inc. ("Wells Fargo"). Salas did not send the
$1,160.37 to Wells Fargo or deposit the funds in a client trust account.

I3. On or about August 7, 2000, a 341(a) meeting was held. Salas hired attorney Valerie
Simmons to appear in place of Respondent. Salas was also present. Salas received from Lopez
a $460.30 money order and a $700 money order for post-petition mortgage payments, and a
$488.87 money order for the plan payment. The $460.30 and $700 money orders were not sent
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to Wells Fargo or deposited into a client trust account. Salas altered and cashed the money
orders. The $488.87 plan payment was given to the trustee.

14. On September 6, 2000, Wells Fargo filed a motion for relief from the automatic stay in
Lopez’s bankruptcy because Lopez’s mortgage payments had not been received. The motion for
relief was properly served on Respondent’s address of record, but Salas concealed the motion
from Respondent. As Respondent was unaware of the Lopez bankruptcy, Respondent did not
oppose the motion for relief and the court was not informed that Lopez’s delinquency was
attributable to Salas’s failure to forward the mortgage payments received from Lopez.

15. On September 13, 2000, Lopez’s bankruptcy plan was confirmed by the court.

16. On September 19, 2000, the court entered an order confirming Lopez’s amended plan.

17. On October 2, 2000, Wells Fargo’s motion for relief was granted.

18. On October 27, 2000, the court entered an order granting Wells Fargo’s motion for relief,
thereby permitting Wells Fargo to foreclose on Lopez’s residence.

19. Respondent did not take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use
Respondent’s identity, which contributed to Salas’ ability to mishandle Lopez’s case and funds
without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization.

20. In or about December 2000, Lopez hired attorney Susan Jordan ("Jordan") to stop the sale of
her home.

21. On December 27, 2000, Jordan faxed a letter to Respondent’ s office in Irvine, California
("the Irvine office") at (949) 253-5728. In the letter, she requested, on Lopez’s behalf, that
Respondent provide an accounting of the $1,160.37 received by Salas from Lopez on July 7,
2000 for her mortgage. Respondent did not respond to Jordan’s request. Respondent maintains
that he was not in the country when the fax was sent and never saw the letter.

Conclusion of Law

22. By not taking sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s
identity in Lopez’s bankruptcy, Respondent failed to perform legal services with competence in
wilful violation of rule 3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

The Esther Rizo Bankruptcy, I - Case No. 02-0-14520

Facts

23. Paragraphs 1 through 7 are incorporated by reference.



24. On October 19, 1999, Salas, and his wife, Patricia Salas, came to the home of Esther Rizo
("Rizo"), unsolicited. Salas informed Rizo that he was aware that Rizo’s home was subject to
foreclosure and that he could prevent the foreclosure by filing a Chapter 13 bankruptcy on her
behalf. Salas gave Rizo a business card indicating that he was the manager for the Law Offices
of H. Samuel Hernandez ("Hemandez’s firm"), located at 2640 E. South Garvey Avenue, Suites
202-203, West Covina, California 91791 ("the West Covina office"). Rizo agreed to hire
Hernandez’s firm for the bankruptcy. Rizo never met with H. Samuel Hernandez ("Hernandez")
and Hemandez had not agreed to represent Rizo. Salas was Rizo’s primary contact with
Hemandez’s firm. The fee agreement which Rizo signed with the Hemandez firm provided that
Rizo would pay $1,400 for the bankruptcy.

25. On October 19, 1999, Salas received $700 from Rizo for the banknaptcy on behalf of
Hernandez’s firm.

26. On November 16, 1999, Salas received $350 from R.izo for the bankruptcy on behalf of
Hemandez’s firm.

27. In November 1999, Hemandez severed his relationship with Salas.

28. On February 16, 2000, Salas filed a Chapter 13 bankruptcy action on Rizo’s behalf
identified as United States Bankruptcy Court, Central District, case number LAO0-14799
("Rizo’s bankruptcy"). Respondent was listed as the attorney of record for Rizo without his
knowledge or authorization.

29. As Respondent was unaware of Salas’s filing of Rizo’s petition, Rizo did not meet nor
speak with Respondent, and did not receive any advice from Respondent regarding her need to
file for bankruptcy protection before the petition was filed.

30. On March 2, 2000, Salas filed a Chapter 13 plan and motion to avoid liens on Rizo’s behalf
under Respondent’s name without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization.

31. With Rizo’s bankruptcy petition, Salas filed a statement representing that the compensation
paid or agreed to be paid by Rizo to Respondent was $1,250.

32. A statement pursuant to rule 2016(B) of the Bankruptcy Rules ("rule 2016(B)") bearing
Respondent’s simulated and mxauthorized signature was filed with Rizo’s bankruptcy petition.
In the statement, it was represented that prior to filing the statement, Rizo had paid or agreed to
pay Respondent $1,250.

33. The representation that Rizo agreed to pay Respondent $1,250 was false. As of February
16, 2000, Rizo had not entered into any agreement to pay nor paid Respondent $1,250.

34. On or about March 24, 2000, the trustee received $607.88 from Rizo to be used toward plan
payments.
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35. On April 2, 2000, the trustee issued a plan in Rizo’s bankruptcy which provided that Rizo
was to make 36 monthly payments of $650.99 to the trustee commencing 30 days after filing the
petition, and make monthly payments of $1,114.49 to her first mortgage holder, California
Federal ("Cal Fed"), and $339.43 to her second mortgage holder, First Plus Financial ("FPF").

36. On April 14, 2000, Salas received $2,061.80 from Rizo in the form of three money orders
payable to Salas for $339.43, $607.88 and $700; and $414.49 from Rizo in the form of a money
order payable to TLC, Contractor’s Warehouse, and listing Salas as the remitter. The $2,061.80
was designated by Rizo to pay Cal Fed, FPF and the trustee for the plan. Salas received the
money orders from Rizo and negotiated the money orders. None of the $2,061.80 was
forwarded to the trustee or deposited into a client trust account. Respondent was unaware of/he
receipt and/or handling of those funds.

37. On April 28, 2000, Salas filed an amended Schedule J and an amended Chapter 13 plan and
motion to avoid liens on Rizo’s behalf under Respondent’s name without Respondent’s
knowledge or authorization.

38. On May 4, 2000, the trustee filed an objection to the confirmation of Rizo’s plan on the
following grounds:

a. there was no proof of service or inadequate proofof service of the plan;
b. proof of all sources of income were not submitted;
c. debts were not disclosed;
d. Schedule F was not amended to include a medical debt, and the creditor for the medical

debt was not served with the plan as requested by the trustee; and,
e. a contribution declaration and proof of income from Rizo’s boyfriend had not been

provided as requested by the trustee.

39. On May 10, 2000, Salas received $2,365.87 from Rizo, or $1,365.45 to pay Cal Fed;
$349.43 for her second mortgage payment to FPF, and $650.99 to pay the trustee for the plan.
None of the $2,365.87 was paid to Cal Fed, FPF, or the trustee or deposited into a client trust
account. Respondent was unaware of the receipt and/or handling of those funds.

40. On May 18, 2000, the Chapter 13 petition was dismissed for failure to make pre-
confirmation payments. All stay and restraining orders were vacated.

41. On May 30, 2000, the trustee filed his final report in Rizo’s bankruptcy. In the report, the
trustee stated that he had received only $607.88 in payment of the plan.

42. Respondent did not take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use
Respondent’s identity in Rizo’s bankruptcy, which led to Salas’s mishandling of Rizo’s case and
funds without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization.
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Conclusion of Law

43. By not taking sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s
identity in Rizo’s bankruptcy, Respondent failed to perform legal services with competence in
wilful violation of rule 3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

The Esther Rizo Bankruptcy II - Case No. 02-0-14520

Fact__s

44. Paragraphs 1 through 7, and 24 through 42 are incorporated by reference.

45. On June 5, 2000, Salas filed a second Chapter 13 bankruptcy action for Rizo entitled, United
States Bankruptcy Court, Central District, case number LA00-26461 ("Rizo’s second
bankruptcy"). Respondent was listed as the attorney of record for Rizo without Respondent’s
knowledge or authorization. As Respondent was unaware of Salas’s filing of Rizo’s second
bankruptcy, Rizo did not meet nor speak with Respondent, and did not receive any advice from
Respondent regarding her need to file for bankruptcy protection before the petition was filed.

46. With the petition in Rizo’s second bankruptcy, Salas filed a rule 2016(13) statement bearing
Respondent’s simulated and unauthorized signature and representing that the compensation paid
or agreed to be paid by Rizo to Respondent was $250.

47. The representation that Rizo agreed to pay Respondent $250 was false. As of June 5, 2000,
Rizo had not entered into any fee agreement with Respondent.

48. As Rizo’s second bankruptcy was filed within six months of Rizo’s first bankruptcy, Rizo
was required to pay all mortgage payments due between February 16, 2000 and June 5, 2000.

49. On July 12, 2000, Rizo paid $7,677.36 to the trustee as mortgage payments. Following the
meeting, Rizo asked Salas for the status of the missing April and May 2000 mortgage payments.
Salas told Rizo that he would provide an explanation.

50. On July 26, 2000, the trustee filed an objection to confirmation of Rizo’s plan in Rizo’s
second bardffuptcy on the grounds that proof of all sources of income had not been submitted;
the plan was not feasible as there was insufficient proof of income to meet the plan’s budget; the
plan’s budget was not amended to delete rental income, to include contribution income, and to
correct a mortgage expense; and no contribution declaration or proof of income of the
contributor was provided.

51. On August 28, 2000, Rizo paid $2,355.87 directly to the trustee for her mortgage and plan
payments.

3.5



52. On August 28, 2000, Respondent appeared at the confirmation heating in Rizo’s second
bankruptcy on Rizo’s behal£ During the hearing, Respondent accepted the trustee’s
recommendation of 36 monthly payments of $650.99 to the trustee, and the plan was confirmed
on that term.

53. On September 7, 2000, the court confirmed the plan in Rizo’s second bankruptcy.

54. On September 15, 2000, Rizo paid $1,365.45 to the trustee for mortgage payments.

55. On October 13, 2000, Rizo paid $1,301.98 to the trustee as plan payments.

56. On October 18, 2000, Rizo was unable to locate Salas at the West Covina office to discuss
her inability to pay the mortgage as Cal Fed’s interest rate had caused Rizo’s payment to
increase from $1,I00 to $1,300.

57. In November 2000, Rizo met with Salas. Salas informed Rizo that he had moved his office,
that he could be reached at his Riverside office, and that he would be opening a new office in
January 2001. Rizo again requested an explanation for the missing April and May 2000
mortgage payments. Salas said he would provide an explanation when the new office was
opened.

58. On December 21, 2000, Cal Fed filed a motion for relief from the automatic stay regarding
Rizo’s home on the ground that Rizo had not paid three mortgage payments after confirmation of
the plan. The total post-petition delinquency was $3,688.81. Cal Fed’s motion was properly
served on the West Covina office, but Salas did not inform Respondent of the motion for relief.
Also, by this time, Respondent had already severed his relationship with Salas. No written
response or opposition to Cal Fed’s motion was filed on Rizo’s behalf. Rizo had stopped
making payments as she did not have the money to make up the deficit created when Salas did
not forward the $4,427.67 received on April and May 10, 2000 from Rizo.

59. On January 16, 2001, a hearing was held on Cal Fed’s motion for relief. Respondent did not
appear at the heating on Rizo’s behalf because he was not made aware of the hearing. The court
granted Cal Fed’s motion for relief.

60. On January 18, 2001, the court served a copy of the order granting Cal Fed’s motion for
relief on the West Covina office and Rizo by mail. Respondent was not made aware of the order

¯ by Salas or by anyone else.

61. On February 2, 2001, the trustee served a motion to dismiss Rizo’s bankruptcy on Rizo and
on the West Covina office. Respondent did not file a written opposition to the motion to dismiss
as he was not made aware of the motion to dismiss by Salas or by anyone else.

62. On April 2, 2001, Rizo’s second bankruptcy was dismissed due to delinquent payments.
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63. Respondent did not take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use
Respondent’s identity in Rizo’s second bankruptcy, which made it easier for Salas to mishandle
Rizo’s case.

Conclusion of Law

64. By not taking sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s
identity in Rizo’s second bankruptcy, Respondent failed to perform legal services with
competence in wilful violation of rule 3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

The Gloria Lara Property_ Damage Claim - Case No. 03-0-00493

Facts

65. On or about June 5, 2002, Gloria Lara ("Lara") hired Respondent’s office, located at 3700
Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 550, Los Angeles, California 90010, for personal injury and property
damage claims arising from a May 29, 2002 automobile collision. Lara never met with
Respondent, but dealt with non-attorneys in Respondent’s office.

66. On July 2, 2002, Respondent’s non-attorney employee, Macaira Aguayo ("Aguayo"), sent a
letter of representation to the opposing party’s insurance cartier, Occidental Wilshire Insurance
Company ("Wilshire").

67. On July 29, 2002, Wilshire faxed a settlement offer for Lara’s property damage claim to
Respondent’s non-attorney employee, Joe Lopez. Wilshire concluded that the damage to Lara’s
vehicle was a total loss.

68. On July 30, 2002, Wilshire was informed by Respondent’s employee that the property
damage settlement offer was accepted and that Lara would retain the salvage. Respondent’s
employee requested that Wilshire send payment to the repair shop, LA Auto Body ("LA Auto"),
because Lara was having the vehicle repaired at LA Auto. Lara had not agreed that LA Auto
could make the repairs.

69. On July 31, 2002, Wilshire issued a property damage settlement draft for $4,834.39 (or
$5,929.39 less $1,095 in salvage value), payable to Lara and LA Auto.

70. On August 7, 2002, Joe Lopez advised Lara that she could not elect where her vehicle could
be repaired. Joe Lopez informed Lara that Wilshire had issued a properly damage draft payable
to her and the repair shop selected by Wilshire. Wilshire had not selected LA Auto. Joe Lopez
advised Lara to go to LA Auto and request her settlement funds. Lara was informed by LA Auto
that it was keeping $1,500 of the settlement funds for "taxes" and that Lara would have to sign a
work order stating that the vehicle had been repaired although no repairs were completed. Lara
declined to sign the work order and returned to Respondent’s office.
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71. On August 7, 2002, Joe Lopez advised Lara that she had to sign the work order as instructed
by LA Auto in order to receive her settlement funds.

72. On August 7, 2002, Lara returned to LA Auto and signed the work order as instructed, but
no repairs were completed by LA Auto.

73. On August 7, 2002, LA Auto issued to Lara a $3,034 check, postdated for August 28, 2002.
LA Auto told Lara that the funds would not be available for three to four weeks.

74. On August 15, 2002, LA Auto informed Lara that the $4,834.39 settlement draft could not
be cashed unless Lara went to the bank with an LA Auto representative. Lara went to the bank
as instructed and the draft was negotiated at a bank on August 15, 2002.

75. Between August 15 to August 27, 2002, Lara complained to Aguayo regarding the handling
of her property damage claim by Respondent’s office and requesting the entire $4,834.39.
Aguayo informed Lara that she would not be able to cash the $3,034 check from LA Auto as LA
Auto had filed for bankruptcy protection.

76. In late September 2002, after Lara threatened to file a complaint with the State Bar of
California against Respondent, Aguayo instructed Lara to try and cash the $3,034 check as LA
Auto’s secretary said that the funds were available. Lara tried to cash the $3,034 check but a
stop payment had been placed on the check. Lara advised Aguayo of the stop payment.

77. On October 2, 2002, Respondent’s non-attorney law clerk, Jay Levy ("Levy"), sent a letter.
to Wilshire. In the letter, Levy demanded that Wilshire reissue, "the property damage draft in
the amount of $4,834.38 (sic)" in Lara’s name only within five days or a lawsuit would be filed
and served. Levy further stated that LA Auto was returning a property damage check to
Wilshire.

78. On October 16, 2002, Wilshire faxed a reply to Levy’s October 2, 2002 letter. In the reply,
Wilshire asserted that it had requested LA Auto to return the property damage draft to Wilshire,
but received no reply from LA Auto. Wilshire asserted that it could not reissue the draft until the
initial property damage draft was returned to Wi!.sh~.re.

79. On November 5, 2002, Respondent sent a letter to Wilshire. In the letter, Respondent
claimed that Wilshire erroneously issued the property damage draft to Lara and LA Auto, and
that Wilshire had ignored Respondent’s October 2, 2002 request that the draft be reissued in
Lara’s name only. Respondent claimed that Wilshire’s failure to reissue the draft resulted in LA
Auto converting the funds. Respondent further claimed that he was contemplating filing a
lawsuit against Wilshire/’or negligence.
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80. On November 14, 2002, Wilshire sent a letter to Respondent in response to his November 5,
2002 letter, ha Wilshire’s reply, Wilshire stated that the property damage draft was not
erroneously issued as Joe Lopez had requested that the draft be issued to Lara and LA Auto
because Lara was having her vehicle repaired by LA Auto. Wilshire further stated that there was
no other reason to issue the draft with LA Auto as a payee since the vehicle was considered a
total loss and Lara was retaining the salvage. Wilshire stated that it could not reissue the draft on
October 2, 2002 because the original draft had been cashed and the funds were never returned by
LA Auto as promised.

81. On January 9, 2003, Respondent filed a lawsuit for Lara against LA Auto in the Los Angeles
County Superior Court, case number 03K00241 to recover damages for alleged fraud and breach
of contract by LA Auto. Also, on Janua~ 9,’2003, Lara submitted a complaint to the State Bar
of California ("State Bar") alleging that Respondent had mishandled her property damage claim.

82. On March ! 1, 2003, State Bar Investigator Nelson Santiago sent a letter to Respondent’s
counsel regarding Lara’s State Bar complaint.

83. On March 30, 2003, Respondent sent a letter to Santiago in response to Lara’s
complaint. In the letter, Respondent’s counsel informed the State Bar that Respondent would
pay Lara’s property damage.

84. On April 2, 2003, Respondent issued a $4,834.38 check to Lara from his general account as
payment of her property damage.

85. On April 3, 2003, Respondent dismissed the lawsuit against LA Auto.

86. On April 3 and 4, 2003, Lara attempted to cash the $4,834.38 check, but there were
insufficient funds in Respondent’s account to honor the check.

87. On April 4, 2003, Lara sent a letter to Respondent. ha the letter, Lara informed Respondent
that she would be complaining to the State Bar about the bounced check.

88. On April 8, 2003, Respondent sent a letter to Lara in response to her April 4, 2003
letter. In the letter, Respondent said, "When we gave you the check, we did tell you that
possibly the funds would not be available and we suggested any other place where that check
might be cashed, but you insisted." On April 8, 2003, Respondent’s employee took Lara to a
check cashing facility where the check was cashed.

89. Respondent issued the $4,834.38 check to Lara when he knew that there were insufficient
funds in his account to honor the check.



90. Respondent permitted his non-attorney employees to handle and resolve Lara’s property
damage claim without proper supervision by Respondent which caused LA Auto to be
erroneously named as a payee on the settlement draft. Respondent’s failure to supervise his
employees resulted in a delay in payment of the settlement funds to Lara.

Conclusions of Law

91. By failing to supervise his employees handling of Lara’s property damage claim,
Respondent failed to perform legal services with competence in wilful violation of rule
3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

92. By issuing the $4,834.38 check when he knew that there were insufficient funds in his
account to honor the check and by suggesting that Lara could cash the check at a check cashing
facility despite the insufficient funds in the account, Respondent committed an act involving
dishonesty in wilful violation of section 6106, Business and Professions Code.

The Omar Amaya Iniury Claim - Case No. 04-0-10155

Facts

93. On August 24, 2002, Omar Amaya ("Amaya") was involved in an automobile collision.
Amaya employed Respondent to represent him in claims arising from the collision.

94. On February 4, 2003, Amaya’s claim was settled for $6,000.

95. On or about February 10, 2003, the $6,000 draft was deposited into Respondent’s client trust
account located at Wilshire State Bank, account number 8303363 ("the CTA").

96. Respondent failed to promptly inform Amaya of his receipt of the $6,000.

97. Respondent failed to pay Amaya his share of the settlement funds, or $2,000, until February
2004.

98. From the date that the $6,000 was deposited into the CTA to the date that Amaya received
his share of the settlement, the balance in the CTA fell below the $2,000 that Respondent should
have maintained in the CTA on Amaya’s behalf. The deficiencies were due to Respondent’s
grossly negligent handling of his client trust account.

Conclusions of Law

99. By failing to promptly notify Amaya of the receipt of the settlement funds, Respondent
wilfully violated rule 4-100(B)(1), Rules of Professional Conduct.

100. By failing to promptly distribute $2,000 to Amaya, Respondent wilfully violated rule
4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct.
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101. Respondent wilfully violated rule 4-100(A), Rules of Professional Conduct, though his
gross neglect, by allowing the balance in the CTA to fall below the $2,000 he should have
maintained in the CTA for Amaya.

The Humberto Hernandez Cruz Bankruptcy - Case No. 04-O-10405

102. Paragraphs 1 through 7 are incorporated by reference.

103. In or about June 2000, Humberto Hemandez Cruz ("Cruz") received the solicitation in the
mail from Salas.

104. On July 24, 2000, Cruz went to the West Covina office in response to the solicitation and
met with Salas. Salas told Cruz that he was an attorney. Salas advised Cruz to file a Chapter 13
bankruptcy. Without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization, Salas agreed to provide legal
representation to Cruz for his bankruptcy. As such, Cruz did not meet nor speak with
Respondent, and did not receive any advice from Respondent regarding his need to file for
bankruptcy protection. Cruz paid Salas $900 as an advance fee and $185 for filing fees,

105. On July 25, 2000, Salas filed a bankruptcy petition for Cruz in which Respondent was
identified as Cruz’s attorney. The West Covina office was listed as Respondent’s address of
record.

106. A statement pursuant to rule 2016(B) of the Bankruptcy Rules ("rule 2016(B)") bearing
Respondent’s simulated and unauthorized signature was filed with Cruz’s bankruptcy petition.
In the rule 2016 (B) statement, it was represented that prior to filing the statement, Cruz had paid
Respondent $1,250.

107. The representation in the statement that Cruz had paid Respondent $1,250 was false. As of
July 25, 2000, Cruz had not paid any fees to Respondent.

108. On July 27, 2000, the court ordered that Respondent was to collect from Cruz and forward
the current monthly payments on any debt secured by Cruz’s residence to his secured lien
holder.

109. On July 29, 2000, the clerk of the court served a copy of the court’s July 27, 2000 order by
mail on the West Covina office. Respondent was not made aware of the order by Salas.

I I 0. On August 3, 2000, Salas received $1,150 from Cruz, or $800 for Cruz’s mortgage
payment due on August 1, 2000, and $350 for the balance of Respondent’s $1,250 fee. Salas did
not make Cruz’s mortgage payment with the $800.



111. On August 4, 2000, Salas filed a Chapter 13 plan and motion to avoid liens under
Respondent’s name without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization. In the plan, Cruz agreed
to continue making his monthly mortgage payments.

112. In or about August or September 2000, Salas received $814 from Cruz for Cruz’s mortgage
payment due on September I, 2000. Salas did not make Cruz’s mortgage payment with the
$814.

113. On or about September 12, 2000, Cruz paid $814 directly to the mortgage holder for his
payment due on October 1, 2000. The funds were applied to Cruz’s mortgage payment due on
August 1,2000.

114. On September 18, 2000, the court confirmed the plan and ordered that Cruz was to pay
$405 by the 25’h day of each month for 36 months. Respondent was awarded $1,250 in attorney
fees. A copy of the order was properly served by mail on the West Covina office, but
Respondent was not made aware of the order by Salas.

115. On or about October 23, 2000, Cruz paid $813 directly to the mortgage holder for his
payment due on November l, 2000. The mortgage holder credited the $813 toward the payment
due on September 1, 2000 as Salas had not forwarded the $814 received from Cruz in August or
September 2000 to the mortgage holder.

] 16. In or about December 2000, Cruz received notices from the mortgage holder that he was
delinquent with his mortgage payments. Cruz attempted to contact TLC to discuss the notice in
light of the payments Cruz had requested Salas to forward to the mortgage holder, but
discovered that "fLC had closed its office without notice to him.

I 17. On January 9, 2001, the mortgage holder filed a motion for relief from the automatic stay
because $2,984.92 in post-confirmation payments had not been received from Cruz, including
four mortgage payments due on October l, November I, and December 1, 2000 and January l,
2001. A copy of the motion was properly served by mail on Cruz and on the West Covina
office. Respondent was not made aware of the motion by Salas.

118. On January 22, 2001, the trustee filed a motion to dismiss Cruz’s bankruptcy based upon
$810.22 in delinquent plan payments due on November 25 and December 25, 2000. A copy of
the motion was properly served by mail on the West Covina office. Respondent was not made
aware of the motion by Salas. As Respondent was unaware of Cruz’s bankruptcy, he did not file
any opposition or response to the motion to dismiss on Cruz’s behalf and the court was not
informed that Cruz’s delinquency was attributable to Salas’s failure to forward the mortgage
payments received from Cruz.

119. On February 8, 2001, a heating was held on the mortgage holder’s motion for relief from
the automatic stay. As Respondent was unaware of Cruz’s bankruptcy, Respondent did not
appear at the heating. Cruz appeared at the heating on his own behalf. Cruz informed the court
that Respondent had disappeared from his office and Respondent’s telephone was discormected.
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120. On or about February 15, 2001, Cruz contacted Respondent about his bankruptcy after
obtaining Respondent’s telephone number in h-vine, Califomia.

121. On or about February 15,2001, Cruz met with Salas at the Riverside office and demanded
proof that Salas had forwarded the mortgage payments to the mortgage holder. Salas issued
check number 1181 from TLC’s general account at Bank of America, account number 09802-
01770, to PNC Mortgage in the amount of $814 and promised to pay the balance to Cruz at a
later date.

122. On or about February 15, 2001, another hearing was held on the mortgage holder’s motion
for relief. Cruz gave the mortgage holder’s attorney check number 1181.

123. Oft February 16, 2001, the trustee filed a declaration in support of the motion to dismiss in
which it was noted that Cruz owed $1,215.22 in delinquent payments.

124. On February 16, 2001, a heating was held on the trustee’s motion to dismiss. As
Respondent was unaware of the motion, Respondent did not appear at the hearing. The court
ordered Cruz’s case dismissed. On February 16, 2001, the clerk of the court properly served
notice of the dismissal on the West Covina office. Respondent was not made aware of the
dismissal because Salas did not notify Respondent of it..

125. On or about February 28, March 2, and March 7, 2001, check number 1181was presented
for payment. There were insufficient funds in TLC’s account and check number 1181 was not
paid.

126. Respondent did not take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use
Respondent’s identity in Cruz’s bankruptcy, which led to Salas’s mishandling of Cruz’s case and
funds without Respondent’s knowledge or authorization.

Conclusions of Law

127. By not taking sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s
identity in Cruz’s bankruptcy, Respondent failed to perform legal services with competence in
wilful violation of rule 3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

Failure to Cooperate - Case No. 04-0-10405

Facts

128. Paragraphs I through 7, and 103 through 126 are incorporated by reference.

129. On February 3, 2004, the State Bar of Califomia ("State Bar") opened an investigation,
identified as case number 04-0-10405, in connection with a complaint received from Cruz
regarding TLC’s handling of his bankruptcy.
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130. On February 26, 2004, State Bar Investigator Nelson Santiago ("Santiago") sent a letter to
Respondent’s counsel regarding Cruz’s complaint. Santiago’s letter was placed in a sealed
envelope addressed to Respondent’s counsel at his State Bar of California membership records
address of 2000 Riverside Dr., Los Angeles, CA 90039-3758 ("counsel’s address"). Santiago’s
letter was mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, by depositing for collection by
the United States Postal Service ("USPS") in the ordinary course of business. The USPS did not
return Santiago’s letter as undeliverable or for any other reason.

131. In Santiago’s letter, he requested that by March 11, 2004, Respondent respond in writing to
specified allegations of misconduct being investigated by the State Bar regarding Cruz’s
complaint. Respondent did not respond to Santiago’s letter.

132. On Marchl I, 2004, Santiago sent another letter to Respondent’s counsel at counsel’s
address. Santiago’s letter was mailed by first class mail, postage prepaid, by depositing for
collection by the USPS in the ordinary course of business. The USPS did not return Santiago’s
letter as undeliverable or for any other reason.

133. With the March 11, 2004 letter, Santiago provided a copy of his February 26, 2004 letter.
Santiago requested that Respondent provide a response to Cruz’s complaint by
March 25, 2004. Respondent did not respond to Santiago’s letter and did not otherwise
cooperate in the investigation of Cruz’s complaint.

Conclusion of Law

134. By not providing a written response to the allegations or otherwise cooperating in the
investigation of Cruz’s complaint, Respondent failed to cooperate and participate in a
disciplinary investigation pending against Respondent in wilful violation of section 6068(i),
Business and Professions Code.

Aiding the Unauthorized Practice of Law -
Case Nos..02-O-10638, 02-O-14520, and 04-O-10405

Facts

135. Paragraphs I through 7; 9 through 19; 24 through 42; 45 through 63; and 103 through 126
are incorporated by reference.

136. At Salas’s direction, and without Respondent’s knowledge, in June2000 approximately,
Edith Lopez appeared unsolicited at the home of Erica Moreno ("Moreno") after Moreno and her
husband had fallen behind in their mortgage payments. Edith Lopez advised Moreno that TLC
was a law firm owned by Respondent, who was the senior partner. Edith Lopez advised Moreno
that bankruptcy was the only option for her to save her home. Moreno did not meet nor speak
with Respondent, and did not receive any advice from Respondent regarding her need to file for
bankruptcy protection.
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137. Edith Lopez and Satas misrepresented to Moreno that Salas was an attorney and misled
Moreno into believing that she was hiring TLC. Further, they told Moreno that Salas would be
handling her bankruptcy. Moreno paid $1,500 to Salas. Salas told Moreno that he could not
appear with Moreno in court because his father was ill. Salas represented that another attorney
would be appearing for her matter.

138. On August 4, 2000, Salas filed a Chapter 13 bankruptcy petition for Moreno, United States
Bankruptcy Court, case number 00-21558, under Respondent’s name without his knowledge or
authorization. As such, Respondent had not reviewed nor signed the petition and Respondent’s
unauthorized signature was simulated on the petition.

139. Respondent did not take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to hold himself out as
an attorney, and he did not take sufficient precautions to diminish Salas’s and other non-
attorneys’ ability to give legal advice.

Conclusion of Law

140. By not taking sufficient steps to diminish Salas’s ability to hold himself out as an attorney,
and by not taking sufficient precautions to diminish Salas’s and other non-attorneys’ ability to
give legal advice, Respondent aided persons in the unauthorized practice of law in wilful
violation of rule 1-300(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

The Zazueta ln~ur~, Claims - Case No. 05-0-10014

Facts

141. On or about October 1, 2002, Martin and Georgina Zazueta ("the Zazuetas") hired
Respondent for personal injury claims related to an automobile accident which occurred on or
about September 26, 2002.

142. Respondent also represented Sergio Galvez ("Galvez") and Carlos Flores ("Flores"), who
were passengers in the Zazuetas’s vehicle at the time of the accident. Respondent did not obtain
the Zazuetas’s, Galvez’s or Flores’s informed written consent to his representation of more than
one client in a matter in which the interests ofthe clients potentially conflicted, as required by
rule 3-3 IO(C)(1), Rules of Professional Conduct.

143. Respondent permitted non-attorney staff, including Jay Levy ("Levy"), to handle the
Zazuetas’s claims. Because Respondent had not properly supervised his staff, the Zazuetas were
incorrectly informed by Respondent’s staff that the other party’s insurance company would be
paying off the Zazuetas’ vehicle as a total loss. However, the Zazuetas received notices from the
lien holder for their vehicle which indicated that they were still responsible for a balance owed to
the lien holder of approximately $3,000.
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144. In May 2003, the Zazuetas’s claims were settled without their being informed of the
settlement offers prior to settlement. Respondent’s fee agreement contained a special power of
attorney giving him the authority to settle the Zazuetas’s claims if he deemed the settlement fair
and reasonable under the circumstances.

145. Because Respondent had not properly supervised his staff, on or about May 7, 2003, the
settlement releases were signed by someone in Respondeut’s office as a witness, who falsely
attested to the Zazuetas’s, Galvez’s and Flores’s endorsement of the releases.

146. Prior to July 2003, the Zazuetas left telephone messages for Respondent in which they
requested the status of their claims. No one returned their calls.

Conclusions of..Law

147. By not obtaining his clients" informed written consent to Respondent’s representation,
Respondent accepted representation of more than one client in a matter in which the interests of
the clients potentially conflicted, without the informed written consent of each client, in wilful
violation of rule 3-310(C)(1), Rules of Professional Conduct.

148. By not supervising his non-attorney staff’s handling of the property damage claim and
endorsement of the settlement releases, Respondent failed to perform legal services with
competence in wilful violation of rule 3-110(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.

149. By not responding to the Zazuetas’s telephone messages, Respondent failed to respond
promptly to reasonable status inquiries of clients in wilful violation of section 6068(m), Business
and Professions Code,

150. By not informing the Zazuetas of the receipt of iheir settlement funds in May 2003,
Respondent failed to promptly notify clients of the receipt of the clients’ funds in wilful violation
of rule 4-100(B)(1), Rules of Professional Conduct.

Respondent’s Gross Negligence - Case Nos. 02-0-10638,
02-0-14520, 03-Q-00493, 04-0-10155, 04-0-10405, 05-Q-10014

Facts

151. Paragraphs I through 7; 9 through 21; 24 through 42; 45 through 63; 65 through 80; 93
through 98; 103 through 126; and 141 through 146 are incorporated by reference.

152. Respondent acted with gross negligence by failing to take sufficient steps to diminish Salas’
ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s identity in Lopez’s, Rizo’s, and Cruz’s bankruptcies, and
in not supervising the settlement and distribution of settlement funds in Lara’s and the Zazuetas’s
claims.
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153. By not maintaining $2,000 in the CTA from the date that the $6,000 was deposited into the
CTA to the date that Amaya received his share of the settlement, Respondent misappropriated
client funds through gross neglect of the CTA.

Conclusions of Law

154. By acting with gross negligence in not taking steps to diminish Salas’ and other non-
attorneys’ ability to fraudulently use Respondent’s identity, and by failing to adequately supervise
his staff in those cases about which he was aware, Respondent committed acts involving moral
turpitude in wilful violation of section 6106, Business and Professions Code.

155. By misappropriating Amaya’s funds through gross neglect of the CTA, Respondent
committed an act of moral turpitude in wilful violation of section 6106, Business and Professions
Code.

PENDING PROCEEDINGS.

The disclosure date referred to, on page one, paragraph A.(7), was January 11, 2006.

DISMISSALS.

The parties respectfully request the Court to dismiss the following alleged violations in the
interest of justice:

Case No. Count Alleged Violation

02-0-10638 Three
02-0°10638 Four
02-O-I0638 Five
02-0-10638 Six
02-0-10638 Seven
02-0-10638 Eight
02-0-10638 Nine
02-0-14520 Eleven
02-0-14520 Twelve
02-0-14520 Fourteen
02-0-14520 Fifteen
02-0-14520 Sixteen
02-0-14520 Seventeen
02-0-14520 Eighteen
02-0-14520 Nineteen
02-0-14520 Twenty
03-0-00493 Twenty-Two
03-0-00493 Twenty-Four
03-0-00493 Twenty-Five

Rule 4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(B)(3), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6068(d), Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Rule 4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(B)(3), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Section 6068(d), Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6068(i), Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Section 6068(a), Business and Professions Code.
Rule 4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
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04-O- 10155 Thirty
04-0- l 0155 Thirty-Two
04-O- 10405 Thirty- Four
04-0-10405 Thirty-Five
04-0-10405 Thirty-Six
04-0-10405 Thirty-Nine
04-0-10405 Forty
04-0-10405 Forty-One

Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.
Rule 1-300(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(A), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 4-100(B)(3), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Rule 3-700(A)(2), Rules of Professional Conduct.
Section 6068(d), Business and Professions Code.
Section 6106, Business and Professions Code.

AUTHORITIES SUPPORTING DISCIPLINE.

In the ?clatter of Jones (Review Dept. 1993) 2 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 411,

For over two years, Jones delegated to a non-attorney, without proper supervision,
all aspects of a plaintiff personal injury practice which resulted in illegal
solicitations, unauthorized practice of law by the non-attorney and mishandling of
client settlement funds.

Jones received two years actual, three years stayed suspension and three years
probation. Jones fully cooperated in the criminal prosecution ofthe non-lawyer
who engaged in the unauthorized practice of law; fully cooperated with the State
Bar; displayed spontaneous candor to the State Bar; took objective steps to make
lienholders whole upon learning that they had not been paid by the non-attorney;
and provided evidence in suppor~ of his good character and community activities.
Little weight was given to Jones’s prior discipline-free record as he was in practice
just over two years when his misconduct began.

In the Matter of Cart (Review Dept. 1992) 2 Cal. Slate Bar Ct. Rptr. 108, 119,
passage of the Pro fessional Responsibility Examination ("PRE") was not
recommended where the attorney had passed the PRE a little less than three years
earlier. Further, while the PRE is relevant to a Standard 1.4(c)(ii) proceeding, it is
not a condition precedent. (In the Matter of Katz (Review Dept. 1991) 1 Cal. State
Bar Ct. Rptr. 502,516.)

AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

FACTS SUPPORTING AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

Multiple Acts of Misconduct

Respondent violated rules 1-300(A), 3-110(A), 3-310(C), 4-100(A), 4-100(B)(1 ),
and 4-100(B)(4), Rules of Professional Conduct; and sections, 6068(i), 6068(m)
and 6106, Business and Professions Code.
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MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

ADDITIONAL MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES.

During the period in question, Respondent, who was admitted in November 1997,
was trying to run his own office. He admits that his skills in office management
left much to be desired.

Before and at the time of the misconduct, Respondent devoted a great deal of his
time and resources to public service. He has been particularly active in the Orange
County Asian American Bar Association, has lectured to law students at Chapman
University, regularly participates in feeding the homeless, has been of substantial
assistance to Boys Hope/Girls Hope charity, and he has provided a great deal of
work for community service activities of the Alumni Association of the University
of California. He has continued in those activities to the present.

Respondent reported Salas’ illegal activities to the police, the United States
Trustee, and to the State Bar. Further, he contacted Salas’ victims to inform them
of the situation.

Respondent recognizes that he has not properly handled his practice and he desires
to withdraw from practice for a period of re-evaluation. He accepts that a period
of suspension would be beneficial.

Respondent has agreed to pay restitution to Gloria Lopez, Esther Rizo, and
Humberto Cruz for the funds improperly taken by Salas. (Cf., In the Matter of
Jones (Review Dept. 1993) 2 Cal. State Bar Ct. Rptr. 411,421.)
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not write above this line.|
the Matter of

DANIEL EDOUARD CHIEN J
Case number(sl:

0 2-0- 1 0 6 3 8- P..a.P

SIGNATURE OF THE PARTIES

By their signatures below, the padies and their counsel, as applicable, signify their agreement
with each oi’ the recitations and each of the terms and conditions of this Stipulation Re Facts,
Conclusions of Law and Disposition.

DANIEL EDOUARD CHIEN

ARTHUR L, M~RGOLI~

DIANE J. MEYERS
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not wfile obove Ibis ling.I
the Mailer of

I Case

DANIEL EDOUARD CHIEN

number(s):

02-0-i 0638-RAP

ORDER

Finding the stipulation to be fair to the parties and that it adequately protects the public,
IT IS ORDERED lhal the requested dismissal of counts/charges, if any, is GRANTED without
preiudice, and:

~’ The stipulated facts and disposition are and theAPPROVED DISCIPLINE
RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court,

The stipulated facts and disposition are APPROVED AS MODIFIED as set
forth below, and the DISCIPLINE IS RECOMMENDED to the Supreme Court,

All Hearing dates are vacated.

The parties are bound by the stipulation as approved unless: 1} a motion Io withdraw or
modify the stipulation, filed within 15 days after service of this order, is g~anted; or 2} this
court modifies or further modifies the app~oveal stipulation. (See rule 135(bL Rules of
Procedure} The effective date of this disposllion is the effective date of the
Supreme Court order herein, normally 30 days after file date. {See rule 953(a),
California Rules of Court.)

._ .......
Dote JudcJ
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
[Rule 62(b), Rules Proc.; Code Civ. Proc., § 1013a(4)]

I am a Case Administrator of the State Bar Court of California. I am over the age of eighteen and
not a party to the within proceeding. Pursuant to standard court practice, in the City and County of
Los Angeles, on January 24, 2006, I deposited a true copy of the following document(s):

STIPULATION RE FACTS, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DISPOSITION
AND ORDER APPROVING

in a sealed envelope for collection and mailing on that date as follows:

[X] by first-class mail, with postage thereon fully prepaid, tbxough the United States Postal
Service at Los Angeles, California, addressed as follows:

ARTHUR MARGOLIS ESQ
MARGOLIS & MARGOLIS LLP
2000 RIVERSIDE DRIVE
LOS ANGELES CA 90039 3758

IX] by interoffice mail through a facility regularly maintained by the State Bar of California
addressed as follows:

DIANE MEYERS A/L, Enforcement, Los Angeles

I hereby certify that the foregoing is true and correct. Executed in Los Angeles, California, on
January 24, 2006.

/         ~    / / /~ __.-
,..’ ! I] P] /# -j

lngela gwens-Oarpenter .
Case Administrator
State Bar Court

Certificale of Semite


